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Our Vision
is to be a major, commercially
successful and sustainable
Trust Port, integral to the
North East of Scotland’s
transport infrastructure
and providing an increasingly
significant contribution
to its economic growth.
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a row the port has

“

“

For the second year in
surpassed 28million
tonnes of shipping.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
I AM DELIGHTED TO REPORT ANOTHER OUTSTANDING YEAR OF ACTIVITY AT

and improved harbour facilities during his tenure as Engineering Director.

ABERDEEN HARBOUR. FOR THE SECOND YEAR IN A ROW THE PORT HAS

I wish him a long and healthy retirement and welcome his replacement

SURPASSED 28MILLION TONNES OF SHIPPING.

Keith Young and also Chris Bain, our new External Relations Director,

Over 7,800 vessel arrivals were recorded during the year, an incredible

who was appointed to the executive team in April.

number for a harbour covering less than one square mile, whilst total

I would also like to thank my fellow non-executive members of the Board

tonnage handled reached 4.88million tonnes; amongst the highest on

and welcome the reappointment of Alistair Mackenzie, Fred Bowden and

record for the port in recent years. These figures clearly demonstrate that

George Massie as non-executive Board members and the appointment of

the demand for berthing facilities in Aberdeen Harbour remains high and

James Bell and Chris Bain as executive Board members.

this is reflected across our broad customer base.

Furthermore, I would like to take this opportunity to congratulate our Chief

Despite challenging conditions during the year for the oil and gas industry,

Executive on being named the 37th Grampian Industrialist of the Year.

the majority of this activity was from our customers in this sector.

This is a well-deserved accolade for Colin. The impact of his leadership is

65% of vessel tonnage and 50% of cargo handled is in support of the

reflected in the significant and sustained period of modernisation that the

UKCS (North Sea) activity. These figures reinforce the port’s position as

port has experienced during his time in office.

the main offshore logistics hub for the North Sea.

Most importantly however, our thanks go to our customers and

General cargo activity also remained high, with international vessel tonnage

stakeholders. The continued support of our many customers ensures that

(non-EU) increasing significantly in 2013. Aberdeen Harbour now has direct

the port remains a key driver of economic activity in the North East of

trading links with nearly 40 countries around the globe and has a growing

Scotland, whilst our stakeholders continue to provide us with consistent

reputation as a key international port for the energy sector.

and valued support. We hope that the launch of the Aberdeen Harbour

2013 also witnessed a record number of passengers visiting Aberdeen
Harbour, with 155,490 passengers transiting through during this period.
Serco NorthLink Ferry Services remains the port's largest customer, and it

Community Action Fund in March 2014 will enable us to continue to build
upon the Trust Port ethos and to support some of our vital local community
groups and charities.

reported a 5% increase in passengers travelling on the services to the

With such healthy activity levels and great local support, Aberdeen Harbour

Northern Isles. A small percentage of the overall figure represents cruise

is well placed for continued growth and expansion. The geographical

ship passengers, in what was the port’s busiest year for cruise ship activity,

constraints of the existing harbour, however, mean that the port is

with 13 vessels visiting the port.

operating at near capacity. It is for this reason that the Board is committed

This strong activity across the customer base was reflected in the financial

to progressing its potential expansion plans for Nigg Bay.

results with turnover up 1.1% to £27.6million (2012: £27.3million)

As a Trust Port, it is our mission is to provide a harbour that is fit-for-

delivering pre-tax profits of £9.6million.

purpose for our customers and for future generations. We believe that a

In such an active period for the Harbour, I am grateful for the hard work and
support of the Board’s management team and staff, who ensured that the
port’s activities were handled efficiently and safely. Aberdeen Harbour staff
achieved zero recordable incidents in 2013, and this is down to the
conscientious manner in which our staff operate.
On behalf of the Board I would also like to record its appreciation to Ken
Reilly for his valued and respected contribution to the Harbour Board for
over 30 years, and for overseeing a period of significant investment in new
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second harbour at Nigg Bay would fulfil all of these requirements. In 2014
we will continue to work with all stakeholders to explore how this
much-needed and exciting project can be delivered in a practical and
funded manner.
CHRIS LLOYD
Chairman, 25 March 2014

allow us to take advantage

“

“

Increased capacity would

of the many new opportunities
that we see on the horizon.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
ANOTHER YEAR OF HIGH ACTIVITY LEVELS AT THE PORT THROUGHOUT 2013

The Management Team has also spent much time throughout the year

REFLECTED A STRONG REGIONAL ECONOMY AND FURTHER STRENGTHENED

consulting with our customers on the benefits that Nigg Bay would provide

THE PORT’S ROLE AS AN INTERNATIONAL HUB, SERVING THE ENERGY

for them, and we have been encouraged by their recognition that Nigg Bay

SECTOR WORLDWIDE.

would provide the kind of deep-water facilities that are going to be vital to

With the port operating at near capacity, however, it became ever more
apparent in 2013 that additional facilities were required if we were to
continue to retain and grow existing activity.
Increased capacity would allow us to take advantage of the many new
opportunities that we see on the horizon, such as decommissioning,
offshore renewables and larger cruise ships. For our existing customers,
increasing berthing certainty and expanding the operational capabilities of
the port would provide significant cost-saving opportunities.
Activity levels in 2013 therefore strengthened Aberdeen Harbour’s
commitment to the Nigg Bay expansion concept and, in May, our potential
plans were unveiled to our stakeholders for the first time. At the time we
could not have predicted the overwhelmingly positive response we
have received from all sectors.
Indeed, the Harbour is very proud of the fact that our potential plans have
received cross-party political support, at both a local and national level.
In May 2013 the Scottish Government recognised the expansion of
Aberdeen Harbour in its National Planning Framework 3 – Main Issues
Report. Their support has since been galvanised by the inclusion of the Nigg
Bay development plans in the government’s subsequent National Planning 3
– Proposed Framework Document, in which the Board’s plans are shortlisted
as one of 14 projects Scotland-wide which have been recognised by the
Government as having national significance.
We have also received a very positive response from the local communities
surrounding Nigg Bay, who see the development as one that has the potential
to bring great economic benefit to the local area. This belief was endorsed in
February 2014 when an independent economic assessment, commissioned
by Scottish Enterprise, revealed that the expanded harbour is estimated,

support the growing subsea activity associated with offshore inspection,
repair and maintenance programmes and with decommissioning. Our cruise
ship customers also recognise the potential of Nigg Bay to transform the
harbour’s status in terms of becoming a major cruise ship destination.
The facilities at Nigg Bay could accommodate vessels much larger than the
existing harbour is able to accommodate, and would operate in a location
which, crucially, remains close to the well-established supply chain and
transport infrastructure in Aberdeen, but free from the traffic issues
associated with the city centre and, with an improved coastal road, providing
vital links to the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route.
The challenge for Aberdeen Harbour in 2014 is to find ways in which this
visionary project can be funded, and we are investigating many potential
methods and funding avenues in order to make this possible.
New facilities cannot be delivered overnight and I therefore welcome the
continued and positive support of our customers during this busy time.
The delivery of the final phase of the Torry Quay project, creating new
common-user, deep-water facilities, is testament to the Board’s capability to
produce best-in-class facilities, and to our commitment to the continuous
improvement of the facilities in the existing harbour. It is our customer base
that has guided us towards the reshaping of Aberdeen Harbour over the last
10 years, and we are committed to continuing this process to meet their
operational needs.
Port improvement, combined with handling 28million tonnes of shipping and
almost five million tonnes of cargo annually can be challenging, however, and
I would like to express my appreciation of my management colleagues and
staff for their valued contribution in delivering the highest level of customer
service and safety.

in 20 years’ time, to contribute a total of £2 billion per annum to the Scottish

This is a very exciting time for Aberdeen Harbour and we believe the future

economy and to support around 15,000 jobs. These findings fully reveal the

of the port is bright. I look forward to building on the port’s successes as we

potential of this project and served to strengthen our belief that the

move forward in 2014.

development of Nigg Bay would provide significant economic rewards,
not only for our customers, local communities and Aberdeen City and Shire,
but also for Scotland as a whole.

COLIN PARKER
Chief Executive, 25 March 2014
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What is a Trust Port?
Modern Trust Ports for Scotland: Guidance for Good Governance published by Transport Scotland, states that
Trust Ports are: ”independent statutory bodies, governed by their own local legislation, and run by independent boards
who manage the assets of the Trust for the benefit of stakeholders“.
A Trust Port is not under the control
of a local authority, nor is it a private
business. It differs from a privately
owned port in that it has no
shareholders who require a dividend,
instead all 'profit' or surpluses made
from Trust Port operations are
reinvested into the operation,
maintenance and administration
of the port.
There are approximately 100 similar ports in
the UK, and the Trust status has proven to be
a highly successful business model for
Aberdeen, since it began in 1961. Aberdeen
Harbour operates in a commercial environment
with no direct public funding, competing in
an open market.
In accordance with Trust Port guidelines,
Aberdeen Harbour is committed to constantly
improving and modernising its assets, services
and infrastructure for the benefit of all its
stakeholders. A long-term view is at the heart

BOARD
MEMBERS
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of everything it does. Major infrastructure
projects can be undertaken with greater
confidence and often with greater clarity
than in other areas of the private sector.

A Trust Port is also free from shareholder pressure,
and historically, the Board has refrained from
increasing its main charges unless this could be
justified by planned investment in facilities.

BOARD MEMBER ATTENDANCE 2013
Board
Meetings

Remuneration
Committee

Audit
Committee

Property
Committee

Chris Lloyd (Chairman)

7 of 8

3 of 3

N/A

N/A

Alistair Mackenzie (Vice-chairman)

8 of 8

2 of 3

N/A

5 of 6

Mike Bowyer

8 of 8

3 of 3

5 of 5

N/A

George Massie

7 of 8

N/A

N/A

6 of 6

Malcolm Laing

8 of 8

N/A

5 of 5

N/A

Fred Bowden

8 of 8

3 of 3

5 of 5

N/A

Howard Woodcock

7 of 8

N/A

N/A

6 of 6

Morag McNeill

7 of 8

N/A

5 of 5

6 of 6

Tony Strachan

7 of 8

N/A

5 of 5

N/A

Colin Parker (Chief Executive)

8 of 8

N/A

N/A

N/A

Ken Reilly (Engineering Director)

8 of 8

N/A

N/A

N/A

James Bell (Finance Director)

8 of 8

N/A

N/A

N/A
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100

OIL & GAS, PROPERTY,
FINANCE, LAW, PORTS,
MARINE & COMMERCIAL
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PORT IN
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OUR BOARD
01 CHRIS LLOYD

03 COLIN PARKER

05 JAMES BELL

07 MALCOLM LAING

09 FRED BOWDEN

11 MORAG McNEILL

Chairman
Board member from 2009

Chief Executive
Board member from 2003

Finance Director
Board member from 2011

Board member from 2012

Board member from 2011

Board member from 2013

Chris has been Chairman of
Aberdeen Harbour Board since
2011. He is also chairman of
MSIS Group, the specialist
industrial cleaning services and
equipment sales and rental
provider based in Aberdeen
and Invergordon.

Colin joined Aberdeen Harbour
in 1987 as a navigation control
officer, becoming Harbour
Master in 1994 and Operations
Director in 2003. He has been
chief executive since 2006.

James joined Aberdeen Harbour
Board in 2009 from Caledonian
Brewery, a subsidiary of
Heineken UK, where he had
been head of finance since 2002.

A corporate lawyer, Malcolm
has lived and worked in the
Aberdeen area since 1982 and
is a partner in Ledingham
Chalmers LLP where he leads
the Corporate Team. He has
extensive experience of
corporate and commercial law,
advising a wide range of clients
on transactional and nontransactional matters.

Fred is the chairman of
Fife-based Tullis Russell Group,
where he was chief executive
for two years before being
appointed to the board.

Morag is a qualified solicitor
and was a partner with
McGrigors for 13 years
specialising in corporate finance.
She spent seven years with
Forth Ports plc as general
counsel and a member of the
group management board.

02 ALISTAIR MACKENZIE

A former Merchant Navy
officer, he was until recently
chairman of the British Ports
Association. He was a board
member of Aberdeen and
Grampian Chamber of Commerce
from 2006 to 2011 and is now
the chairman of the North East
Committee of the Scottish
Council for Development and
Industry. Colin recently became
the 37th annual Grampian
Industrialist of the Year.

Vice-Chairman
Board member from 2010

04 MIKE BOWYER

A chartered accountant, Chris
has worked in senior
management positions in the
corporate finance practice of
PriceWaterhouseCoopers,
together with board positions
in the aviation and logistics
sectors with CHC Helicopter and
ASCO over the last 30 years.

Alistair is a master mariner,
who has worked in Aberdeen’s
energy industry for more than
20 years. His experience
includes senior positions at Elf
Exploration UK Limited and
responsibility for European
operations as Managing Director
of CHC Helicopter.
Alistair is currently regional
director of Achilles Group
Limited, responsible for
delivering supplier management
services to the oil and gas
sector. Alistair is also a
commissioner of the Northern
Lighthouse Board.
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Board member from 2013
Mike is a chartered engineer
and chartered director working
in the oil and gas industry for
38 years, holding executive
positions with Baker Oil Tools,
PES International, Halliburton
and Senergy.
He is currently a director of
ACONA AS, a Norwegian service
company and is chair of the
Aberdeen and Grampian branch
of the Institute of Directors.
Mike previously served on the
boards of industry bodies Oil and
Gas UK and OPITO and was
heavily involved in the industry’s
Step Change in Safety initiative.
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A graduate of Dundee University,
James trained with Bird Simpson
Chartered Accountants and
spent seven years with Meston
Reid in Aberdeen in various roles
to senior manager before moving
to Edinburgh and joining
Diageo in 2001. James is also
chairman of the British Ports
Association Finance Group.

Malcolm is also vice-chair of the
charity, Cornerstone Community
Care and acts as general legal
adviser to several public bodies,
charities and trade associations.

He was previously a
non-executive chairman of
Scottish Enterprise Fife,
where he was involved in
the development of Fife
Energy Park. He is also a
Trustee of the Russell Trust
and Non-executive Chairman
of leading child care
company, Childbase.

10 HOWARD WOODCOCK
06 GEORGE MASSIE

08 CHRIS BAIN

Board member from 2011

Board member from 2014

A chartered architect, town
planner and development

Educated at Stirling University,
Chris followed an early career

consultant, George has worked
in private practice and local
government. He held a number
of senior positions in the Town
Planning department of
Aberdeen City Council.

in helicopter and marine
logistics, subsequently moving
into the role of senior logistics
manager within the oil and gas
and construction sectors,
including roles with Petrofac,
Dubai Petroleum & Ras Al
Khaimah Petroleum.

With extensive knowledge of
large-scale, complex
development projects he has
experience in master planning
and is a recognised expert
witness in the fields of town
planning, conservation and
historic buildings. He is also a
member of the Scottish Council
for Development and Industry
and the Institute of Directors.
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Located primarily in the UK,
Chris also spent five years
in the Middle East. Prior to
joining Aberdeen Harbour in
April 2013, Chris headed up
project services for Petrofac on
the Laggan Tormore Project,
based in the north of Shetland.

Board member from 2012
Howard is chief executive for
Bibby Offshore and has over
30 years’ experience in the
marine business.
Howard started with Bibby Line
as a deck officer on cargo ships
and tankers moving to offshore
support vessels in the North
Sea. He qualified as
a chartered ship broker in 1990
and rejoined Bibby Line in 1993,
joining the board in 2002.
Moving to Bibby Offshore in
2005, he has overseen much of
the company’s growth from 19
employees to more than 1,300
by 2013.

Morag is a non-executive
director of the Strategic Board
of the Scottish Government and
of Social Investment Scotland
and is a member of the audit
committee of the University of
Aberdeen. She also sits on the
board of several charities
including The Edinburgh
Academy and Family Action in
Rogerfield and Easterhouse.

12 TONY STRACHAN
Board member from 2013
Tony joined Aberdeen Harbour
Board in 2013, after a career in
the Bank of England culminating
as the bank’s representative and
Agent for Scotland from
2003-2010.
Tony holds an MBA from the
Open University. He is also a
Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and a Lay
Member of Court of Heriot
Watt University, where he now
chairs the Audit Committee
of the University. He is Chair
of the Glasgow Orchestra,
Merchant Sinfonia.
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12
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ABERDEEN MANAGEMENT TEAM: ANSWERING

COLIN PARKER

KEN REILLY

KEITH YOUNG

Chief Executive

Engineering Director (to April 2014)

Engineering Director (Designate)

Q: What have been your main achievements
and highlights in 2013?

Q: What have been the significant challenges
you have faced during your career with 		
Aberdeen Harbour?

Q: What are you most looking forward to in
your role as Engineering Director?

A: I was delighted when the need to expand
berthing facilities was recognised by the
Scottish Government in its National Planning
Framework 3 process. I was also very impressed
by the way the operations team, for the second
year running, managed over 28million tonnes
of shipping. Our Engineering Department also
safely delivered four new deep-water berths at
Torry. We welcomed two key new senior
colleagues to the Management Team; Chris Bain
our External Relations Director and Keith Young
our Engineering Director Designate.
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A: The harbour has been virtually rebuilt during
my time here. It has changed from a
predominantly fishing harbour to the premier
port for the North Sea energy industry, and now
has links to nearly 40 countries. The challenge
has been to manage that change by providing
new infrastructure to suit the new demands,
whilst at the same time making sure the port
continues to function safely with as little
disruption as possible to our stakeholders
and the environment.

A: I am looking forward to being part of Aberdeen
Harbour Board’s future redevelopment projects,
including the proposed new harbour in Nigg
Bay. To be involved in a major project that
would transform part of my home town, is an
exciting prospect.
I am already experiencing the wide-ranging
responsibilities of my position. I am looking
forward to working with the entire engineering
team, which provides vital support to the
harbour operations.

		
IAN JESSIMAN

DANNY STROUD

BRIAN ANDREW

Assistant Harbour Master

Assistant Harbour Master

Board Secretary

Q: What is the most challenging aspect
of your role?

Q: What sets Aberdeen Harbour apart from
other ports?

Q: What are the main responsibilities of
Board Secretary?

A: My career with Aberdeen Harbour over the last
21 years has given me a great sense of personal
achievement. The Assistant Harbour Masters
manage a team of marine staff that crew
the Harbour Authority’s two pilot vessels and
multi-purpose workboat to dealing with the
day-to-day operations of one of the UK’s busiest
Trust Port’s. My role also sees me involved with
the ports simulator, VTS and updating the
various emergency plans. On a rotational basis,
with my colleagues, we form an on-call system
that covers 24hours/365 days.

A: What sets us apart is the way VTS and the
operations team have to react to the constant
changes and demands for our berths. With
the majority of our shipping operating only
12-18 hours away, the scheduling of berths and
vessels’ movements is very fluid and we need to
be very flexible and understanding in our
planning to meet everyone’s needs. Thankfully,
we have excellent working relationships with
the harbour users and our day-to-day operations
are carried out with a minimum of disruption,
even when the weather conspires against us.

A: My duties and responsibilities generally mirror
those of a company secretary. This includes
administrative support for the Board and its
committees and ensuring corporate governance
procedures are implemented effectively. As a
senior member of the management team I also
have an involvement in formulating planning,
financial and marketing strategies, and assisting
with personnel matters.
I also manage the Board’s land and property
holdings extending to 83 hectares, providing
annual rental income of around £6.5million.

YOUR QUESTIONS

JAMES BELL

DEREK ARMSTRONG

RAY SHAW

Finance Director

Assistant Finance Director

Operational Director & Harbour Master

Q: Aberdeen Harbour is a thriving business,
but how do you ensure it continues to retain
its position as a leading North Sea port?

Q: What are your main responsibilities?

Q: Aberdeen Harbour is one of the busiest
UK ports. How do you maintain operational
efficiency?

A: As a Trust Port, all profits are reinvested in
harbour development. We have a history of
setting out solid development plans, delivering
fit-for-purpose modern infrastructure and
ensuring that we continue to provide industryleading facilities. Since 2008 we have spent
in excess of £60million developing the Harbour.
Our plans to expand the Harbour into Nigg Bay
shows the Board’s ongoing commitment to
provide appropriate facilities to accommodate
the growing demands for deep-water berths.

A: These are the preparation of the Board’s annual
financial statements, the monthly management
accounts, the annual budget forecasts, other
financial and traffic information and the 		
preparation of the Board’s defined benefit
pension scheme accounts. I also process one
of the Board’s payrolls and oversee overall
payroll compliance, VAT compliance and 		
the Trial Balance integrity. I prepare the annual
corporation tax computation for review by our
tax advisers. In addition I provide a support role
to the Board’s Finance Director.

A: With a lot of hard work by a very competent and
conscientious team! I really do feel that I have a
superb team working within the Operations
Department, who safely control over 8,000
vessel entries and departures every year, never
mind the many thousands more inter-port
movements. We are one of the busiest ports in
the country for vessel movements, despite our
comparatively compact size. This takes a lot
of skill and co-operation between staff and
port users.

CHRIS BAIN

PATRICK JORDAN

KIRSTY GORDON

External Relations Director

Environmental Adviser

Health & Safety Adviser

Q: Aberdeen Harbour has many and varied
stakeholders. How do you engage with them?

Q: Your responsibilities are extensive; what
are the main aspects of your role?

A: We use a variety of ways to engage with our
stakeholders, including a yearly public meeting
and Annual Review.

A: To ensure senior managers at the Harbour have
the advice and guidance they need to run it in
a way that fulfils our obligations as stewards
of the port, and of the local environment.
The Harbour has invested an enormous amount
in its infrastructure. With projects such as
Torry Quay and Nigg Bay we work extremely
hard to ensure we minimise any impact to
sensitive habitats and valued urban
green spaces. We have to ensure we continue
to be good guardians of the port.

Q: Aberdeen Harbour is a busy, industrial port.
What challenges does this present for 		
Health and Safety?

We like to understand the needs of the local
residents. We have regular dialogue with local
environmental groups, many of whom we
sponsor. We talk with a range of politicians
and business leaders. Our website is also
being developed to be much more informative,
especially given our proposed plans for
Nigg Bay.

A: Work areas can be congested with cargo
operations and the transit of heavy goods
vehicles, fork-lift truck, tugmasters and cranes.
All of which present a risk to people due to
vehicular and pedestrian interactions. Control of
working areas presents a challenge for port
users, ensuring responsibility and ownership for
quayside activities, working alongside other
operations safely, without conflict or posing
hazard to personnel. We work very hard with our
customers to minimise these risks.
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The History of the Harbour
Aberdeen Harbour is Britain’s oldest existing business and few
ports in Europe can claim a history as long.
THE HARBOUR HAS PLAYED
AN INTRINSIC ROLE IN THE
COMMERCIAL SUCCESS OF THE
CITY THAT GREW UP AROUND IT
OVER THE PAST 878 YEARS.
North Sea oil has ensured the
Granite City’s strategic role in the
fortunes of the Scottish and UK
economies, however, it is only
the most recent of a series of
industries accommodated by the
port. Fishing, shipbuilding, textiles
and global transportation of stone
from the city’s famous quarries
have all relied on the facilities of
this essential North Sea gateway.
The lives of generations of
Aberdonians have been affected
and shaped by the Harbour since
King David I of Scotland granted
the Bishops of Aberdeen the

right to levy a tithe on all ships
trading at the port, in 1136.
This was the era of the Knights
Templar, the Crusades; and this
was still two centuries before
King Robert the Bruce fought
for the nation’s sovereignty at
Battle of Bannockburn.
By Tudor times new trade links
with Scandinavia and Baltic ports
led to improvements in the port.
The first cargo-handling crane
was installed in 1582. This was
followed in 1596 by the issue of a
charter by King James VI to raise
funds for improvements, which
included a bulwark at Torry to help
deepen the harbour entrance.
A blockhouse, or fort, was built in
1532 on the north side of the
Harbour entrance, playing a role in
perhaps deterring the Spanish

Armada from landing in the North
East in 1588.
The 1860 fortification at Torry
Battery, which overlooks the
southern approaches, illustrates
the Harbour’s strategic importance.
The Harbour weathered extensive
punishment during World War Two
when it was a significant strategic
target for enemy aircraft.
Since its inception, the Harbour
has supported a fishing industry,
which boomed with the
introduction of the steam trawler in
the 1880s. Aberdeen was also
home to a major shipbuilding
industry, which ended
comparatively recently,
in the 1990s.

however, marked the start of a
period of intense modernisation
within the footprint of the Harbour,
a period in which it was virtually
rebuilt. It has now been
transformed into one of the most
modern ports in Europe.
The evolution of Aberdeen as a
world-class port continues to this
day, and last year also saw the
release of the Options for Growth
and Directions for Growth
documents, which outline how
the story of the Harbour can enter
a new era with the potential
development at Nigg Bay. So the
evolution of the port seems set to
continue, adding another chapter
to its incredible history to date.

The arrival of the offshore oil and
gas industry in the mid-1960s

TORRY QUAY

Aberdeen Harbour 1796

Aberdeen Harbour 2013

Steering a safe passage
When the famous 18th century civil
engineer, John Smeaton, was appointed
ALBERT
BASIN
to report
upon the Harbour in 1769, the
entrance to the port had changed little
from Roman times. The clear unobstructed
approach to the present-day harbour,
with its well-protected entrance and lack
of tidal influences on berths, is a relatively
modern augmentation of the natural
watercourses that formed the estuary
of the River Dee.
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Smeaton constructed the first 1,200ft of
the North Pier between 1770 and 1781, which
still stands today. Thomas Telford laid down
the basic blueprint by which enclosed harbours
would be built, using the peninsular model.
His valuable contribution to the port is now
recognised by the naming of Telford Dock.
The iconic Girdleness Lighthouse was
completed in 1833. Following the extensive
reconstruction works of the 19th century,

the Harbour Commissioners established
leading lights on the centre line of the
navigation channel, and they are still
operational in 2014, having recently
been renovated.
In 2012 the main navigation channel
was widened and deepened to allow
larger vessels to enter the harbour,
thereby allowing access to new markets
and opportunities.

THE GREAT
CLIPPER RACE
One of the most famous ships built in Aberdeen

THE ALL TIME
LOCAL RECORD
FISH LANDING
129,916 TONNES
IN 1925

Harbour was the Thermopylae. She was a tea clipper
ship built by Walter Hood for the Aberdeen White
Star Line (George Thompson & Co), designed by
Bernard Waymouth, and launched in 1868.

Houdini emerges
from the depths
of Aberdeen
Harbour
Thousands of people
gathered at the Harbour on
July 1, 1909 to witness the
world-famous magician
and escapologist Harry
Houdini dive into the
chilly water whilst chained
and handcuffed.
A cold and watery demise
appeared inevitable for the
man who was already a
household name thanks to
his incredible death-defying
feats. The minutes spent
underwater only led to the
assumption that the Granite
City would become
VICTORIA DOCK
synonymous for claiming
the life of the Houdini.
Then suddenly, he resurfaced,
triumphant and free from his
shackles. Needless to say,
his exploits ensured that his
shows at the nearby Palace
Theatre in Bridge Place were
a huge success.

The clippers were renowned in the 1800s for their spectacular feats
of speed when travelling the trade routes to and from the far-flung
ports of the British Empire.
Thermopylae was intended for the London and China trade routes
but first found fame after sailing from London to Melbourne in just
60 days. The Melbourne Argus described her as a “fine specimen of
naval architecture, a model of symmetry and beauty… conveying an
idea of perfection.”
In an attempt to rival the Aberdeen clipper builders and the
dominance of Thermopylae itself on the tea trading routes from
China, the now famous Cutty Sark was constructed on the Clyde,
and the stage was set for a race between two of the world’s
fastest ships.

FORK-LIFT
TRUCKS WERE
FIRST USED
DURING WORLD
WAR TWO

In 1872 the two ships left Shanghai to go head-to-head back to
London. The Cutty Sark built up a substantial lead before losing her
rudder on the Cape of Good Hope and was forced to dock in Cape
Town for repairs. Thermopylae surged ahead, arriving in London a
week ahead of her rival.
The clippers captured the public’s imagination just before steamers
usurped sail ships. Sadly, posterity has not been kind to the
Thermopylae. Whereas the Cutty Sark is now majestically restored
at Greenwich – a popular tourist attraction and a lasting exemplar
of these beautiful ships – Thermopylae lies sunk off the coast of
Lisbon after ending her days being used for target practice by the
Portuguese navy.
Source: www.aberdeenships.com, Royal Museums Greenwich

THE FIRST
RO-RO FERRY
TERMINAL
OPENED IN 1977

Houdini was in the North
East to visit the grave and
honour the memory of John
Henry Anderson (1814-1874),
nicknamed The Wizard of the
North who, according to
Wikipedia, is credited with
helping bring the art of magic
from street performances
into theatres. Anderson was a
hero to Houdini, and the
escapologist arranged for the
upkeep for Anderson’s
tombstone, which still exists
today in Aberdeen’s St Nicholas
Kirk graveyard.
Thermopylae
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£33.3 MILLION

39 SHIPPING
CONNECTIONS 2013
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2013: ANOTHER STRONG YEAR OF ACTIVITY
2013 WITNESSED ANOTHER YEAR
OF HIGH ACTIVITY FOR THE
HARBOUR. FOR THE SECOND
YEAR IN A ROW, VESSEL
TONNAGE WAS IN EXCESS OF
28MILLION TONNES, AND THE
PORT EXPERIENCED ITS BUSIEST
WEEK EVER IN SEPTEMBER, WITH
A RECORD 690,907 TONNES OF
SHIPPING PASSING THROUGH.

By maintaining such high levels
of activity Aberdeen Harbour
continues to be one of the busiest
Trust Ports in the UK, with a strong
performance in terms of vessel
tonnage in both the oil and gas and
commercial sectors.
As well as vessel tonnage, cargo
tonnage also remained amongst
the highest the port has experienced.
Approximately 4.9million tonnes of
cargo crossed the quayside during
2013. The overall number of vessels
entering the Harbour also remained
high, with over 7,800 vessel arrivals
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during 2013, a figure slightly down
on the previous year’s total. Far
from indicating a decrease in
activity – as the port now operates
at, or near capacity – this decrease
reflects the fact that larger, biggercapacity, vessels are becoming
more prevalent.
2013 was also a highly successful
year for passenger numbers. Well
over 155,000 passengers passed
through Aberdeen Harbour in 2013.
The vast majority of these
passengers were travelling on
Serco NorthLink’s ferry services to

and from Orkney and Shetland, and
their figures reflect a 5% increase
on their 2012 passenger numbers.
A small percentage of the
passenger numbers, however,
visited the port by cruise ship.
Indeed, the Harbour enjoyed a
record-breaking cruise-ship season,
with 13 vessels visiting the port
during the summer season,
which generally runs from May to
August. This reflects the growing
popularity of North East Scotland
as a cruise destination.
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Oil & Gas Supply6%Bases

12%

18%
35%

12%

24%

Oil & Gas Spot Market

41%

29%

59%

Oil & Bulk Terminals
35%

35%

General Cargo

29%

12%

24%
41%

29%

6%
12%

HOW DID
WE
PERFORM?
With the aim of
assessing its
performance in
2013, Aberdeen
Harbour Board
issued a customer
survey to a wide
range of general
cargo and oil and
gas customers,
early in 2014.
The survey received
an 85% return rate,
and the results are
summarised here:

59%

18%
35%

12%

IN YOUR OPINION, HOW PROFESSIONAL
IS ABERDEEN HARBOUR TO DO
BUSINESS29%
WITH?
59%

6%

29%
COMPARED
TO OTHER PORTS, HOW
EFFECTIVE IS THE INFRASTRUCTURE
AVAILABLE AT ABERDEEN HARBOUR
65%

HOW CUSTOMER FOCUSED DO
YOU BELIEVE ABERDEEN HARBOUR
CAN BE?

29%

35%

6%
24%
41%
6%

12%

Very customer focused

Very professional

Moderately customer focused

29%

Moderately professional

6%

59%

Not at all customer focused

35%
18%

12%

12%

Extremely professional

18%

Much better
Slightly better
About the same

35%
12%

29%

Slightly worse
Not applicable

35%

29%
65%
29%

35%
12%

HOW RESPONSIVE TO YOUR
OPERATIONAL NEEDS IS
ABERDEEN HARBOUR?

29%
6%

OVERALL, ARE YOU SATISFIED
18% WITH
YOUR ROUTINE
12% DEALINGS WITH THE
EMPLOYEES AT ABERDEEN HARBOUR?

35% 12%

Very responsive
65%

29%

35%

12%

Very satisfied
Satisfied

Not at all responsive

Very likely

18%

Likely
70%

Neither satisfied
nor dissatisfied

53%
6%

18%

12%
35%

29%
29%

65%

29%

Moderately responsive

6%

35%

HOW LIKELY WOULD YOU BE TO
RECOMMEND ABERDEEN HARBOUR TO
OTHER POTENTIAL USERS?

59%

29%

12%

53%
6%

6%

65%

Not at all

HARBOUR OPERATIONS

The UK’s oil and gas lifeline
SUPPORTING THE OIL AND GAS

these improvements within the

The greater international reach

and will be further compounded as

INDUSTRY IN THE NORTH SEA AND

geographical constraints imposed

of the UK oil and gas industry,

decommissioning projects start to

WEST OF SHETLAND MADE UP

by the port being in the heart of a

combined with the search for

increase in number.

ALMOST HALF OF ABERDEEN

busy city centre, is a tribute to the

hydrocarbons extending to ever

HARBOUR’S ANNUAL REVENUE OF

sound stewardship of the Board

deeper waters worldwide and the

£27.6MILLION IN 2013, AND HARBOUR

and Management Team.

drive to create economies of scale,

ACTIVITY IS OFTEN CONSIDERED AS
A BELLWETHER FOR ECONOMIC
ACTIVITY ACROSS THE REGION.

The oil and gas sector, however, is
constantly changing. Supply-chain
equipment and materials from the

have all resulted in the introduction
of ever larger oil support vessels.
Safety stand-by vessels, supply
vessels, anchor-handlers and, in

Growth in this challenging and

UK’s oil and gas industry are now in

demanding industry has been

strong demand around the world,

constant in recent years, and the

considerably larger than they were

and Oil & Gas UK estimates that

Board has implemented long-term

just 10 years ago.

exports equate to approximately

strategic initiatives to ensure that

£6 billion in value annually.

particular, subsea vessels are all

Aberdeen Harbour Board has
responded to this challenge by
introducing operational
enhancements such as the
widening and deepening of the
entrance channel. The Board
believes, however, that Aberdeen
Harbour needs to further expand
outwith its existing footprint to fully
embrace this latest evolution in

Fortunately, the increase in size of

support requirements for the oil

these vessels has been

and gas industry. It is fully

the Harbour has evolved to exceed

Aberdeen Harbour’s commitment to

the expectations of operators large

further improving its facilities has

and small.

helped to develop this sector and

A policy of continuous modernisation

the port has grown into a significant

has transformed the Harbour’s

hub for international oil and gas

quaysides and, if those who worked

activity. It supports regular trading

on the docks just 30 years ago

links with West Africa (currently

were to visit in 2014, they would be

ranked as one of the most

amazed by the evolution that has

significant deep-water provinces in

taken place and which has created

the world), Australia, Scandinavia

outstripped supply across the

Aberdeen Harbour is ready to grow

some of the most modern and

and the Barents Sea. This growth

region. This capacity shortage is

and to adapt to the needs of the oil

efficient operating facilities in the

in international oil and gas trading

further compounded by the

and gas industry. It is through this

industry. Most recently the

activity has indeed been a

increasing demands for subsea

type of adaptation and through

completion of the redevelopment of

significant factor in the success of

activity in support of the inspection,

understanding the needs of its key

Torry Quay has provided state-of-

the energy industry in the North

repair and maintenance regimes

customers that it has evolved over

the-art facilities for key oil and gas

East of Scotland and, ultimately,

required to safeguard what is

many centuries, and the need to do

customers. To have achieved all

the Scottish economy.

mature offshore infrastructure

this has never been more keenly felt.
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accompanied by a revolution in
vessel positioning and handling
technology, but this does not lessen
the impact the introduction of these
vessels has had on harbours
throughout the North East in terms
of capacity. Larger vessels require
longer and deeper berthage, and
the demand for such facilities has

committed, therefore, to exploring
the feasibility of a second harbour
at Nigg Bay with this aim in mind.
The Board is also committed to
investigating continued
improvement projects within the
existing harbour in support of its
many customers.

Oil giants commit to Albert Quay
Two of the Board’s key customers extended their commitment
to Aberdeen Harbour in 2013.
First BP and then Total E&P UK extended their leases at Albert Quay for
a further 10 years. Both companies operate from Albert Quay in support
of their North Sea and West of Shetland activities.
Chief Executive, Colin Parker, welcomed these announcements and the
continued commitment by both of these prominent customers to the port.
He added: “This long-term commitment by these oil majors to Aberdeen
Harbour sends a very clear message regarding the longevity of the region’s
oil & gas industry and the strategic importance of Aberdeen to their
long-term plans. It also illustrates the close working relationship the Harbour
has developed with these organisations and many other operators”.
.

A GLOBAL TRADING PARTNER
Aberdeen Harbour, whilst now synonymous with the energy
industry, has an incredible diversity of activity and trading links
around the world. Just over a quarter of the Harbour’s turnover
comes from commercial cargo operations that are not directly
supporting the oil and gas facilities on the UKCS.

SCHEDULED SERVICES FROM ABERDEEN
ABERDEEN > ORKNEY/SHETLAND

Cruise Control

ABERDEEN > WEST AFRICA VIA BELGIUM

ABERDEEN IS BECOMING A MORE REGULAR DESTINATION FOR
TOURISTS AND THE NUMBER OF CRUISE SHIPS VISITING THE

ABERDEEN > NORWAY > RUSSIA

GRANITE CITY INCREASED TO 13 IN 2013.

ABERDEEN > NORWAY
ABERDEEN > FAROES

LIST OF COMMODITIES: ROAD SALT • SALMON FEED
TIMBER • CALCIUM CARBONATE SLURRY
TUBULARS • SUBSEA EQUIPMENT • SCRAP METAL
GRAIN • BARITES • BENTONITE • REFINED OIL
PRODUCTS • FRESH SALMON • LIVESTOCK • WIND
FARM COMPONENTS • FOOD PRODUCTS

Well over 1,500 cruise vessel tourists visited Aberdeen and the North East,
linking the region to destinations including the Northern Isles, Outer Hebrides
and Norway.
The season included a number of new vessels reflecting the growing
number of cruise operations that recognise the first-class services provided
by Aberdeen Harbour. The four-month cruise season began in May with the
arrival of the Island Sky and continued right through the summer months
with visits from the vessels Ortelius and Fram. Another highlight was the
arrival of the striking Sea Cloud II, a vessel modelled on the classic barques
of the early 20th century, and one that features an impressive set of sails
measuring 32,150sq ft.
The potential expansion of berthing facilities at a new harbour at Nigg Bay
would enable us to welcome larger vessels, further enhancing Aberdeen as
a must-visit destination on the cruise-ship circuit.
Aberdeen Harbour works alongside the 14 other member ports that make
up Cruise Scotland, promoting the country as an attractive cruise-ship
destination for overseas travellers. The Harbour is also a member of Cruise
Europe, a long-established organisation with similar aims for many
European coastal states.
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Maintenance & Engineering
ABERDEEN HARBOUR IS ONE OF THE BUSIEST PORTS IN THE UK. IT REQUIRES
PLANNING, CO-ORDINATION AND MILITARY PRECISION TO ENSURE THAT ESSENTIAL
MAINTENANCE AND MAJOR PROJECTS DOVETAIL SEAMLESSLY AND MINIMISE
DISRUPTION OF DAY-TO-DAY OPERATIONS. 2013 SAW A NUMBER OF SIGNIFICANT
PROJECTS UNDERTAKEN THAT HAVE ENHANCED AND IMPROVED EFFICIENCY WITHIN
THE HARBOUR AND PROVIDED OUR CUSTOMERS WITH A PORT FIT FOR PURPOSE.

TORRY QUAY HAS VITAL ROLE TO PLAY
The Torry Quay project has completely revitalised the south side of the River Dee and
is geared towards servicing the growing demand for the North Sea support services.
THE £33MILLION MULTI-PHASE REDEVELOPMENT
WAS COMPLETED IN 2013 AND IS THE LARGEST
SINGLE INVESTMENT IN THE PORT’S MODERN ERA.
Reconstruction of the ageing quays created 400 metres of deep-water
berthage and seven hectares of back-up area, bringing further significant
improvements to port users and the Harbour Board in the efficiency and
safety of operations, as well as further cost-saving opportunities in
sharing facilities.
The engineering work involved was considerable: more than
12,000 wagon loads were required to fill the River Dee Dock, bringing
approximately 240,000 tonnes of crushed rock. Approximately
17,500m2 of concrete paving was constructed during the project.
2012 Torry Marine Base

A 570-metre reinforced concrete service duct houses all mud, fuel
and water bunkering pipes, providing fully supported facilities.
The construction process has significantly enhanced the functional
capability on the south side of the Harbour enabling more modern,
deep draught ships and heavier cargoes to access berths.
This has delivered a modern fit-for-purpose quayside that is more than
able to cope with the demands of supporting the thriving North Sea
oil and gas industry.
Torry Quay has allowed more Harbour customers to enhance their
presence, improve their facilities and commit to the Harbour in the
medium- to long-term. This provides stability for customers and just as
importantly, it enables the Harbour to plan for the future with confidence.

2013 After redevelopment
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Leading Light Move
Following the 2012 Navigation Channel improvements, where the entrance was widened and
deepened to allow greater under-keel clearance and manoeuvring space for vessels entering the
port, the iconic leading lights no longer marked the centre line of the entrance channel.
Temporarily, a sector light was
installed with a view to moving the
front light onto the new centre line.
The leading lights have been in
operation since 1842 and are
amongst the world’s oldest cast

South Breakwater
Lighthouse
strengthening
The lighthouse was originally
constructed in 1875 and has
weathered the North Sea storms
for nearly 140 years.
To protect this landmark Aberdeen
Harbour made good some of the
structural cracking and fitted stainless
steel reinforcing bands around the
exterior. The repairs were completed
in August 2013.

iron light towers. The lights have
been adjusted before – the rear
leading light was moved in
December 1874.

to move the front light to its new

Specialist contractor Geostructural
Solutions Ltd. managed the project

This allowed the cast-iron tower

location, excavating beneath the
15-tonne tower and installing a
steel lifting frame and steel track.

to a new position onto
a reinforced concrete base.
View Video and News Article
at www.aberdeen-harbour.co.uk

that houses the light to be moved

Ken Reilly
Ken Reilly retired in April 2014 as
Aberdeen Harbour Board’s
Engineering Director. Ken joined the
Harbour almost 34 years ago, when
the port was still very much
dominated by the fishing industry.
Since then Ken has presided over a
series of improvements which have
transformed the port into the modern
facility that it is today. Aberdeen Harbour
Board is very grateful for all that Ken has
achieved and wishes him a long and
well-deserved retirement.
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2013: 154,000
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SAFETY CONCERNS

SAFETY CONCERNS

2012

2013

2013
> Improved hazard
awareness amongst staff
> Improved adverseevent reporting and
investigation
> Improved action tracking

Port
up

Port
up

Port Safety
2013 saw another year of continual improvement in
Aberdeen Harbour Board’s Health & Safety performance.
MUCH OF THIS CAN BE
ATTRIBUTED TO THE
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE
HEALTH AND SAFETY
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM IN
READINESS FOR OHSAS
18001 CERTIFICATION.
Staff training and consultation led
to greater awareness of safety
concerns, which has led to swifter
identification of safety issues,
which in turn has led to increased
reporting of potential hazards, thus
helping prevent further incidents.

Harbour, by sharing ideas and
best practice throughout their
respective organisations.
By involving our staff and others
who use the port in safety issues
that affect them, Aberdeen Harbour
are confident that this approach will
continue to have a positive effect
on health and safety performance
in the years to come.
Aberdeen Harbour Board, in
conjunction with Port Skills and
Safety, has played a key role
during the consultation phase of

Port
the HSE’s L148 Safety in Docks,
The Aberdeen PortAberdeen
Safety Group
Safety
Group
Code of Practice, which subsequently
also played a pivotal role in the
safety improvements within the

During 2013, safety and

2013 0
2013 0

REPORTABLE
ACCIDENTS
LOST TIME
ACCIDENTS

environment staff have been
working with Rivo Software to
develop, build and implement a
Safeguard system, designed to
meet the needs of Aberdeen
Harbour Board. The system
has been designed to manage
future certified integrated HS&E
systems. Modules include the
management of:
> training
> risk assessments
> adverse events
> non-conformances
> inspections and audits

was launched in April 2014.

SHIP’S-BRIDGE SIMULATOR IS ESSENTIAL SAFETY TOOL

Aberdeen Port
Safety Group

Working together
to improve safety
ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD IS AN ACTIVE
MEMBER OF THE PORT SAFETY GROUP,
WHICH IS OPEN TO ALL PORT USERS AND
HARBOUR-ASSOCIATED COMPANIES.
The group meets on a regular basis to
discuss health & safety matters common
to the port. Areas of interest for the
group include issues such as:

Aberdeen Harbour’s Marine Operations
Centre is home to one of the most
sophisticated ship’s-bridge simulators in
the country.
Using state-of-the-art NTPRO 5000 equipment,
developed by Transas, the simulator
provides users with a 160-degree screen
with a two-bridge facility. This allows an
incredibly realistic experience with regard to
weather conditions and vessel manoeuvring.
Aberdeen Harbour uses the simulator to
train its pilots and boat crews, but the
facility is also hired out to third parties for
crew training and search & rescue courses.
Petrofac Training Services is one of the
companies which uses the simulator.

The company’s Safety and Survival Training
Manager, Hugh Chisholm said: “We use the
ship’s-bridge simulator to give masters and
mates of offshore emergency response and
rescue vessels realistic training in
responding to major offshore emergencies.
The simulator ensures course participants
experience the very real pressures
associated with combining command of the
vessel with co-ordination of search and
rescue resources, including those deployed
from and beyond the ship, in an emergency.
It provides a virtual, lifelike challenge and
ensures those in command of offshore
rescue vessels are fully prepared to deal
with any emergency situation.”

> the segregation of quayside
cargo operations
> creation of safe havens for operators
and lorry drivers
> safe access and egress to vessels
> mooring best-practice

Aberdeen Harbour Board are committed to compliance with the UK Port Marine Safety Code, and recognise their individual and collective responsibility as Duty Holders.
Aberdeen Harbour Board’s independent Designated Person has presented the Board with audit reports of the Harbour’s Marine Safety Management System throughout
the year, and a summary of incident reports is available on the Aberdeen Harbour and Marine Safety Forum websites.
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Environment always on the agenda
The harbour remains a valuable habitat for wildlife, despite the intensity of port and shipping
activity. This is testament to the hard work and focus that has been directed by Aberdeen Harbour
and its customers towards minimising the environmental impact of their operations.
The BBC's Springwatch and

points, and lucky observers

the environmental impacts of

Impact Assessment for the project

Winterwatch programmes

even report sightings of

construction is of particular

will begin in 2014.

drew national attention to

whales further offshore.

importance, and the Board applies

the growing reputation of
Aberdeen's harbour mouth as
a place to observe wildlife.
Visitors are rewarded with

Seals, otters and several varieties
of seabird populate the Harbour
waters and are regularly observed

strict controls and monitoring
requirements on construction
activity taking place around

The Harbour continues to develop
solid working relationships with
regulatory bodies such as the
Scottish Environmental Protection

alongside ships berthed quayside.

the port.

marine acrobatics from the

The Harbour's Management Team

The harbour engaged with

Natural Heritage and the Dee

bottlenose dolphins that

is acutely aware of the importance

regulators and other interested

District Salmon Fisheries Board to

regularly patrol around the

of this rich habitat and works with

parties about the potential impacts

ensure all operations are carried out

breakwaters, just a few

its customers and contractors to

of our proposed new harbour in

in accordance with the appropriate

hundred metres from viewing

protect and preserve it. Minimising

Nigg Bay. Full Environmental

legislation and best practice.

spectacular displays of

Working to protect the environment
THE INFILLING OF THE TORRY QUAY BASIN MARKED THE THIRD
YEAR OF SIGNIFICANT ENGINEERING WORKS ON THE SOUTH
BANK OF THE RIVER DEE.
Constant monitoring of water quality took place during this work to
prevent any impact on the River Dee Special Area of Conservation.
Work alongside the river is now complete and customers already using
the full length of new deep-water berths.
Environmental oversight of engineering contractors remains a priority,
and many of the lessons learned during the Torry work were incorporated
into our Environmental Code of Practice; this now forms part of the
specification in our standardised engineering contracts.
MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
Following a detailed review in 2012, the Board has approved a new,
unified HS&E policy statement and work began on developing the

Agency, Marine Scotland, Scottish

health, safety and environmental management systems to meet the
requirements of ISO 14001.
The process of reviewing and improving internal procedures is well under
way, guided by external specialists, with the aim of achieving certification
in 2014.
SUPPORTING LOCAL GROUPS
The Harbour committed funds and staff time to supporting local
environmental groups like the East Grampian Coastal Partnership and
the River Dee Partnership.
The Dee Partnership’s action group
on urban water quality, which we
lead, ran a successful Yellow Fish
Drain Awareness Day in Torry which
aimed to highlight that what people
discharge into their drains enters the
river and the Harbour.

From its source in the Cairngorm Mountains to
its mouth at Aberdeen, the River Dee is a
Special Area of Conservation. The river is
subject to national and international legislation
due to the abundance of wildlife and habitats.
Best known for its population of Atlantic
salmon, which migrate through the Harbour,
the river is also an important habitat for
freshwater pearl mussels and otters.
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Photo: Ian Hay, wildlife photographer

DOLPHIN FACTS
➣ Torry Battery is a good site from which to
view dolphins

RECYCLING & WASTE

POLLUTION 2013

The trend for waste generated by Aberdeen Harbour
(not including ships’ waste) increased between 2010
and 2012, reflecting increased activity, including the
refurbishment of several office locations. This year,
despite activity levels remaining high, Aberdeen Harbour
has managed to reverse this trend, mainly reflecting the
results of Recycling Training rolled out across the workforce.

Nine pollution incidents were reported to Aberdeen
Harbour Board in 2013, three fewer than in 2012.
The source was unidentified in three of these cases.
Most were small leaks from vessels, with the two
most significant events both being the result of burst
hydraulic hoses. It maintains a 24-hour callout
arrangement with marine pollution clean-up specialists,
and has an exemplary clean-up record.

➣ Bottlenose is the most commonly seen
species at Aberdeen
➣ Risso's Dolphins, White Beaked Dolphins,
Minke Whales and Harbour porpoises can
also be seen
➣ The North East has the largest resident 		
dolphin population in Scotland
(approximately 190)
➣ Scottish bottlenose dolphins are the
world’s largest

Waste Generated by AHB Buildings (Tonnes)
9.5

11%

9.0

Leaks, Machinery
Failures & Bursts

8.5

Unknown

33%

8.0
7.5
7.0
2010

2011

2012

2013

56%

Overflow

A VISION FOR THE FUTURE
TRANSPORT SCOTLAND DESCRIBES

OBJECTIVE: Further consolidate

OBJECTIVE: To enhance our

It is estimated that a scheduled

A TRUST PORT AS:

our position as the principal

role as the main commercial

service has operated between

marine support centre for the

port serving the North East

Aberdeen Harbour and the Northern

oil and gas and renewables

of Scotland.

Isles since 1836, and the Board is

”A VALUABLE ASSET PRESENTLY
SAFEGUARDED BY THE EXISTING
BOARD, WHOSE DUTY IS TO

industries in the North Sea and

fully committed to preserving this

Atlantic Margin, and strengthen

Just over a quarter of the Harbour’s

long-standing relationship with

Aberdeen’s emerging role as a

turnover comes from commercial

BETTER CONDITION TO

the residents of Orkney and

global distribution hub for

cargo operations that do not directly

SUCCEEDING GENERATIONS.

Shetland and the Islands’ numerous

oilfield materials, equipment

support the offshore oil and gas

visitors. The Board is committed to

and services.

industry in the UKCS, and so

adapting to meet the evolving

general cargo activities are a

infrastructure needs of these lifeline

fundamental element of Aberdeen

services, including the possibility

Harbour’s business. The growth

of larger ‘combined’ freight and

of this sector, however, is also

passenger vessels. The Board also

hampered by a lack of capacity,

believes that the development of an

which the Board believes will be

additional harbour at Nigg Bay could

addressed by the construction of

attract and accommodate the larger

HAND IT ON IN THE SAME OR

THIS REMAINS THE ULTIMATE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD,
AND FUTURE GENERATIONS REMAIN

To achieve this goal, it is clear that

THE ULTIMATE STAKEHOLDER.“

the capacity of the port needs to
increase and that facilities must be

Although this definition appears to

adapted in a way that allows larger

be very future-focussed, a Board

vessels to berth in Aberdeen.

cannot hand on a modern

Vessels across our customer base

fit-for-purpose facility without

are getting larger and this means

investing in maintenance and

that the Board needs to create

the Nigg Bay facilities. There are

cruise ships that are increasingly

improvements in the present.

additional, deep-water berthing.

many new and diverse commercial

visiting Scottish Ports.

Aberdeen Harbour’s Key Objectives

The Board believes the construction

business streams that could be

are very much focused on providing

of a second harbour at Nigg Bay

developed and accommodated

benefits for its current customers

would realise this objective.

within the Harbour if the additional

and stakeholders, as well as future

The Board is also committed to

capacity existed.

generations. The key objectives held

continuing the modernisation

by Aberdeen Harbour Board, which

of the existing Harbour, which

OBJECTIVE: To remain the

support this guidance, have been

remains critical to its operations

principal Scottish mainland port

This objective is key to a Trust Port’s

designed to be both visionary, and

going forward.

OBJECTIVE: Cultivate a
collaborative, mature and
supportive relationship with our
stakeholder communities,
customers and employees.

for lifeline ferry services to the

ethos. The Transport Scotland

yet achievable in a very practical

Northern Isles, and become one

Guidelines state that the interest of

sense as they shape the decisions

of the primary cruise-ship

the Harbour’s stakeholder groups

we make every day.

locations in Scotland.

‘should be at all times the guide by
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THE TASK OF DEFINING OUR VISION IS A SIMPLE ONE. AS WITH OTHER TRUST PORTS AROUND SCOTLAND,
ABERDEEN HARBOUR ADHERES TO THE GUIDANCE CONTAINED IN TRANSPORT SCOTLAND’S MODERN TRUST
PORTS FOR SCOTLAND – GUIDANCE FOR GOOD GOVERNANCE (2012).

which trust port boards direct the

Aberdeen Harbour Board and the

port’, and this is especially true in

Harbour Board staff are very proud

Aberdeen Harbour. The geographical

of the port’s relationship with its

proximity of the Torry and Footdee

wildlife and natural environment,

and our customers’ marine and
quayside operations, means the
needs of its various stakeholder
groups are very much intertwined.

but they also all believe that
improvements can always be made
and complacency is to be avoided.

To understand all of these needs

modernise the quayside in Torry

Aberdeen Harbour makes great

took place within a Special Area of

efforts to communicate at a

Conservation on the River Dee, and

meaningful and constructive level

this project was completed with no

with as many stakeholders as

significant impact on the natural

possible. This involves public

surroundings. Indeed, the Harbour

meetings, customer and community
consultation, an informative website,
staff liaison groups and, in 2013, the
introduction of a formal Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy and the

has evolved to become a cleaner
port as time has gone on. There is
much to thank our customers for in
this respect, but it is also due to the

launch of a Community Action Fund.

efforts of the Harbour staff.

Aberdeen Harbour Board will

In 2014 the Board will be seeking to

continue to improve these methods

achieve ISO 14001 Environmental

and to form an ever-closer

Management accreditation.

relationship with its stakeholders.

It believes the port will benefit

OBJECTIVE: To strive for

MAIN COMMERCIAL
PORT FOR NORTH EAST
SCOTLAND

The recent £33million project to

from the improved processes

continuous environmental

implemented to achieve this award

improvement and minimise

and from the Board’s commitment

impacts associated with our

to continue similar programmes

operations on the environment.

of improvement.

KEY OBJECTIVES

communities, city centre activity

PRINCIPAL MARINE SUPPORT
CENTRE FOR OIL & GAS
AND RENEWABLES

PRINCIPAL MAINLAND PORT
FOR LIFELINE NORTH ISLES
FERRY SERVICES
ENHANCE
RELATIONSHIP
WITH STAKEHOLDERS
CONTINUOUS
ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPROVEMENT
Aberdeen Harbour Board Annual Review 2013 23

A new Torry Harbour
ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD BELIEVES THE CREATION OF A SECOND HARBOUR AT NIGG BAY WOULD REPRESENT A UNIQUE
OPPORTUNITY TO TAKE A FACILITY, WHICH HAS PLAYED A KEY ROLE IN THE SUCCESSES OF THE CITY AND REGION FOR
HUNDREDS OF YEARS, AND ENSURE THAT IT REMAINS PART OF THE VERY BEDROCK OF FUTURE SUCCESS FOR THE AREA.

So what would a second

congestion associated with the city

berthing and associated operational

operators to avoid the costs and risk

harbour consist of, and what

centre. An improved coast road

cost savings.

associated with road transferal of

benefits would the new

would provide a link through to

facilities provide?

Altens and, subsequently, to the

The development of Nigg Bay, to the
south of the existing harbour, would
create, as a minimum, an additional

Aberdeen Western Peripheral
Route, thereby providing ease of

The depths of the quays are also a
key critical feature of the Nigg Bay
design. The ability of the second

personnel, materials and equipment
back to supply bases in Aberdeen
from alternate ports.

access to the south, west and north

harbour to accommodate vessels

The benefits of the new deep-water

of the city.

significantly larger than the existing

facilities could also be enjoyed by

harbour can accommodate, would

other customers. Should the current

1,500 metres of fully-serviced
quayside, protected by two large

The real benefits of Nigg Bay,

be transformational in terms of the

however, lie in the extent and the

passenger and freight vessels that

breakwaters. The minimum depth of

type of vessel traffic that could berth

nature of the quayside that would be

serve the Northern Isles be

the water would be 10 metres, and

in Aberdeen.

an additional 150,000 square metres

constructed. The development

of lay down area would be created.

would add an additional 25% of

Indeed, Nigg Bay could

multifunctional vessels, then the

quay to that currently provided in the

accommodate the larger subsea

deep-water berthage at Nigg Bay

The location of the new facilities is

existing Harbour, and would be

vessels such as dive support,

would be essential to accommodate

significant. Nigg Bay retains a close

fundamental to alleviating the

associated with the increasing oil

these vessels. The anticipated fuel

proximity to the city’s numerous

capacity issues the port is currently

and gas industry demands for

cost savings to the Scottish

vendors, fabricators, company

facing. This would provide both

offshore inspection, repair,

Government resulting from a

headquarters and businesses, whilst

general cargo and oil and gas

maintenance and decommissioning.

reduction in vessel numbers would

simultaneously avoiding the traffic

customers with greater certainty of

This would allow oil and gas

be considerable.

consolidated into two larger,

Case for growth

Directions for Growth

NPF3 Main Issues Report

September 2012

December 2012

April 2013

Environmental Impact
Study Scope
July 2013
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The development of Nigg Bay,

bodies, customers and other

however, would also bring very real

stakeholders. Recognition by the

economic benefits to our local

Scottish Government of the national

communities. It would have the

significance of the Nigg Bay

capability to accommodate the

development in their 3rd Planning

larger cruise ships that are visiting

Framework process has bolstered

Scotland in increasing numbers.

the Board’s belief that the beneficial

Indications from other locations in

economic impact of the Nigg Bay

Scotland are that the economic

development would be significant,

impact from a high number of

not only to Aberdeen City and Shire,

visiting cruise-ship passengers

but to Scotland as a whole.

is considerable.

The development of Nigg Bay would

Colin reveals plans

The economic impact of the Nigg

constitute the biggest modernisation

Bay development as a whole is, of

project that the Board has undertaken

Aberdeen Harbour chief executive Colin Parker officially unveiled

course, even greater. A recent

since John Smeaton and Thomas

the visionary Nigg Bay project at the Board's Annual Meeting, held

independent study, carried out by

Telford designed the peninsula model

at the city's Marcliffe at Pitfodels hotel last May. The reaction was

BiGGAR Economics on behalf of

for the port in the 1800s. The Board

overwhelmingly positive as Colin spelled out the Board's level of

Scottish Enterprise, estimated that

is committed to ensuring the

ambition and the level of planning and consultation that had been

the full development could mean

development planning process is

undertaken prior to making the plans public.

that Aberdeen Harbour could

accompanied by a robust programme

contribute as much as £2billion to

of consultation and environmental

His key message was that a modern, vibrant, fit-for-purpose harbour

the Scottish Economy in 20 years’

consideration, whilst also ensuring

is essential to safeguard continued prosperity for Aberdeen and the

time and support 15,000 jobs.

that the business case is both

wider region.

The response to the Harbour Board’s

prudent and compelling.

He explained that Aberdeen Harbour is a key driver of economic activity

plan has been widespread and

for the entire region and must continue to adapt to ensure the services

overwhelmingly positive, including

and facilities it provides remain technically relevant in this age of

support from the local community,

increasing vessel dimensions and intensified cargo activity.

local and national politicians, industry

Economic impact of Aberdeen Harbour
Nigg Bay Development Report

NPF3 Proposed
Framework Report

Aberdeen Local Development
Plan Main Issues Report

December 2013

January 2014

January 2014
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THE COMMUNITY
RAISING THE GLOBAL PROFILE
The Harbour welcomed hundreds of visitors from home and
overseas during 2013, demonstrating the global nature of our
business and the importance of Aberdeen as a trading port.
From the President of Mozambique to the Granite City Ladies Probus
Club, the variety of people who have an interest in the port is a source
of pride for all of us who work for the Harbour.

Community Action Fund Launched

Most visitors to the Harbour are enthralled by the boat trip that allows a
unique perspective of operations and conveys an awe-inspiring sense of
the size and scale of the vessels berthed at quayside.

RATHER THAN SEEING ITSELF AS HAVING A ‘RELATIONSHIP
WITH’ THE LOCAL COMMUNITY, ABERDEEN HARBOUR
HAS BEEN A PART OF THE LOCAL COMMUNITY FOR
MANY CENTURIES.

Many visitors are here to do business and fact-finding missions and
trade delegations are an important part of the ongoing quest to
broaden our customer base. In 2013 we welcomed delegations from
Iceland, Mozambique, Norway, Malaysia, China and Trinidad. In June
we were also honoured to welcome the Governor of the Bank of
England, Mervyn King, prior to his retirement.

As a Trust Port it is committed to supporting its stakeholders and
local community in many ways, and one of these ways is to provide local
charities and community groups with sponsorship from its Community
Action Fund, which was launched in March this year.

One of the fundamental objectives is to engage with the local
community and our other stakeholders. Local groups and
organisations are frequent and regular visitors to the Harbour.

Applications for sponsorship from this fund are considered every year,
and one-, three-, and five-year sponsorship agreements made with a range
of community groups and projects. Applications can be made via the
Aberdeen Harbour Board website www.aberdeen-harbour.co.uk from
1 February to 30 April each year, with sponsorship agreement offers being
made in May.

We also welcome members of the public to attend our Annual Public
Meeting, which allows people the chance to meet the Board and hear
from the Management Team on how the Harbour is performing and to
have their say on our future plans.
We look forward to meeting many more visitors and delegations
in 2014.

Who we do sponsor:
Your application must meet one of three qualifying categories:
> Environment
> Health & Wellbeing
> Skills & Talent

Derek MacKay, Minister for Local
Government & Planning

Applicants must be:
> A community group or
> A local charity
Who we do not sponsor:
> Those seeking money for sponsored events to raise money for charity
> Commercial ventures, including business startups
> Individuals

Armando Guebuza, President of Mozambique

Torry Lighthouse Gala
Hundreds of people attended on
the day with families and people
young and old coming together to
enjoy the fun and sense of
occasion, which took place at in the
local Tullos Playing Field.

WHO WE HAVE HELPED 2012-2013
➣ Aberdeen International Youth Festival
➣ Aberdeen Performing Arts
➣ Aberdeen Seafarers Centre
➣ Banchory Ternan Rotary Club
➣ Befriend a Child
➣ Clan
➣ Cornerstone Community Care
➣ Crossroads
➣ Dee Catchment Partnership
➣ East Grampian Coastal Partnership
➣ Footdee Playpark Refurbishment

➣ Inspire
➣ Merchant Navy Welfare Board
➣ Nautical Institute
➣ Northern Star Business Awards
➣ Roxburghe House
➣ SCDI
➣ Student Awards
➣ The Archie Foundation
➣ Voluntary Services Aberdeen
➣ Women in Property

VISITORS FROM
AROUND THE WORLD

JUNE 2013 SAW THE INAUGURAL
TORRY LIGHTHOUSE FESTIVAL
TAKE PLACE, PUTTING THE
EXTRAORDINARY TALENTS OF LOCAL
PEOPLE INTO THE SPOTLIGHT.
Organised by several community
groups the festival featured more
than 20 acts who delivered music,
comedy and performance art.

ICELAND DELEGATION

Aberdeen Harbour was a proud
participant of the event which was
co-ordinated by Torry Community
Council, Police Scotland, the
Communities Team of Aberdeen
City Council, Torry St Fittick’s
Church, Safer Aberdeen and many
from the local community. The
hope is that 2013 will be the first of
many festivals and that it becomes
a feature on the Torry calendar for
many years to come.

WYOMING/COLORADO ROTARIANS

CHINA NANSHAN DEVELOPMENT GROUP INCORPORATION

KAZA

GOVERNO

Opening the doors to the MOC
As part of the annual Scottish Civic Society Doors Open Day
initiative, Aberdeen Harbour welcomed visitors to the operational
heart of the port, the Marine Operations Centre in September.
This was the first time the Harbour had taken part for some years in this
popular event and places on the tour were fully booked well in advance.
The MOC is the iconic building located on the North Pier that serves as
the control centre managing the highly complex task of co-ordinating shipping
traffic in and out of Aberdeen.
As part of the tour, visitors were able to experience the state-of-the-art
Ship-Bridge Simulator, which forms an integral part of the safety training for
harbour personnel.

Grampian Industrialist
of the Year

Aberdeen Harbour Board Chief
Executive, Colin Parker, became the
37th winner of the annual Grampian
Industrialist of the Year title in March
2014. The honour was awarded at a
black-tie event at the Mercure Ardoe
House Hotel, hosted by the Aberdeen
Junior Chamber International, and
attended by more than 250 guests.
Colin said, "I am honoured and delighted
to receive this prestigious award, but I
believe that it really reflects the hard work
carried out by all of the employees at
Aberdeen Harbour Board over the years,
and I would like to thank them, and all of
our stakeholders, for their continued
support. With their help we have
transformed the Harbour into the modern
thriving business that it is today".

Art and Business Award
A multi-arts project devised by
Aberdeen International Youth
Festival and Aberdeen Harbour, and
in partnership with Aberdeen's City

SUPPORTING THE SEAFARERS CENTRE
In 2013 Aberdeen Harbour Board
also pledged to provide financial
support to the Aberdeen
Seafarers Centre to the value of
£60,000 over three years.
Located in the city's Market Street,
the Aberdeen Seafarers Centre
opened its doors in December 2011
and now provides support to more
than 100,000 crew members who
visit Aberdeen Harbour each year.
The Seafarers Centre offers
comfort, welfare and practical
advice to crew members, whilst
also providing a range of
recreational activities, including a
games room and free wi-fi for
visitors. Particularly popular is the
complimentary internet access,

AKHSTAN DELEGATION

OR OF ALASKA

which provides many crew members,
especially those from far afield, with
often their only means of contacting
their loved ones back home.
The centre is staffed by volunteers;
many are former seafarers or have
some connection to the sea who
carry out a variety of functions
including visiting ships to offer
support and listen to the concerns
of crew members. Others offer
their services to keep the Seafarers
Centre running and supporting
those who visit, or help with
fundraising. The centre is supported
by a range of sponsors, but is always
keen to source additional support.

Council Arts Development Team
to centre volunteers about issues
that affect them.
This year’s Harbour Shield Golf
Tournament, which took place
in September, raised £3,860 in
support of the Aberdeen Seafarers
Centre. A committee of Aberdeen
Port Users and staff runs the
annual Harbour Shield Golf
Tournament, with proceeds going
to the Seafarers Centre.

NEC OF TRINIDAD

for Young People and the Arts at
the Arts & Business Annual Awards
held in Aberdeen in October.
The project, entitled The Port, was
part of Creative Scotland's First in a
Lifetime initiative, and involved around
400 young people in carnival arts and
circus skills.
The aim of the project was to
encourage young people to engage
with the arts whilst learning about the
importance of Aberdeen Harbour and
its history. The project culminated in
the young people putting on a show in
the AIYF parade.

Visitors can enjoy a relaxing game
of pool, watch TV or just simply talk

NORWEGIAN AMBASSADOR

and Theatre Modo won the award

PRESIDENT OF MOZAMBIQUE

MALAYSIAN DELEGATION
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REPORT OF THE BOARD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
The Board present their report with the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.
Administration, maintenance and improvement of the harbour is entrusted to Aberdeen Harbour Board, an independent statutory body formed under the terms of the Aberdeen
Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1960. Certain modifications to this constitution were embodied in the Aberdeen Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1987 and the Aberdeen Harbour
Revision (Constitution) Order 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activities of the Board are the operation and maintenance of the port facilities and the provision of services ancillary thereto.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS
Review of business for the year can be found in the Strategic Report.

BOARD MEMBERS
The board members shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 January 2013 to the date of this report.
Chairman
C P Lloyd
Vice-Chairman
A MacKenzie
Members
C Bain

Appointed 16 December 2013

J Bell
F Bowden
M Bowyer
M Laing
M McNeill
G Massie
C Parker
E K Reilly

Demitted Office 16 December 2013

A Strachan
H D Woodcock
Principal Officers
C Parker

Chief Executive

C Bain

External Relations Director

J Bell

Finance Director

I Jessiman

Board Secretary

E K Reilly

Engineering Director

Captain J R Shaw

Operations Director & Harbour Master

BOARD SECRETARY:
I Jessiman

REGISTERED OFFICE:
16 Regent Quay, Aberdeen AB11 5SS

AUDITORS:
Johnston Carmichael LLP, Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors, 29 Albyn Place, Aberdeen AB10 1YL
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REPORT OF THE BOARD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
POLICY ON PAYMENT OF CREDITORS
It is the policy of the Board to pay all verified accounts within agreed settlement terms.

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
The Board are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Legislation requires the Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Board have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Board must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Board and of the profit or loss of the Board for that period.
In preparing these financial statements, the Board are required to:
>> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
>> make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
>> state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements
>> prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Board will continue in business
The Board are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Board and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the applicable legislation. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the port’s assets and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Financial statements comply with the Harbours Act 1964 as amended by the Transport Act 1981.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
So far as the members are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 1986) of which the Board’s auditors are unaware, and
each member has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a member in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Board’s auditors are aware of that information.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Johnston Carmichael LLP, will be deemed re-appointed under S487 of the Companies Act 2006.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:
I Jessiman Secretary
31 March 2014
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STRATEGIC REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
The Board present their Strategic Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Board considers that it operates in an area where there will be ongoing demand for its services. The Board has a strong record of investing in modern facilities, plant and
equipment and this together with increased training for our employees will enable us to meet the challenges of the future in offering our port customers a quality cost-effective
service. The Board are currently working at addressing certain business risks regarding capacity constraints by reviewing the future development of the harbour.
The port’s business has a wide spread of customers and commodities and is capable of adapting to market changes.
The financial risks are limited to the normal commercial risks associated with running a business. We have no currency exposure.
The Board operates a defined benefit pension scheme and also employs two marine pilots who are members of the Pilots’ National Pension Fund. These arrangements
are more fully explained in note 20 to the financial statements.
In the port’s business, the Board has statutory responsibility for operations in our areas of jurisdiction.
Any significant risk from any of the above risk categories would be debated by the Board and an agreed procedure of handling that risk mitigating as far as practical would
be delegated to the relevant Executive Directors as appropriate.
The Board have compiled a Risk Register which is reviewed in full by the Audit Committee with the highest risks reviewed by the Board on a six-monthly basis.

DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE
Financial results
Turnover for the year amounted to £27.68million, an increase of 1.1% compared with the 2012 figure of £27.38million. Operating profit fell from £9.79million to £8.38million in
2013 mainly due to the financial statements reflecting the obligation to the PNPF deficit of £2.53million.
The profit for the year after taxation amounted to £7.02million. As a Trust Port all profits are retained for reinvestment in harbour developments for the benefit of the port’s stakeholders.
Market Value of Land and Buildings
The Board estimate that the market value for land and buildings is in excess of the value shown in the balance sheet but, in accordance with accounting policy, such assets
are not revalued.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:
I Jessiman Secretary
31 March 2014
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO
THE MEMBERS OF ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD
We have audited the financial statements of Aberdeen Harbour Board for the year ended 31 December 2013 on pages 33 to 48. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). These financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of investments and the accounting policies set out therein.
This report is made solely to the members of Aberdeen Harbour Board, as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members those matters we
are required to state to them in a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Board and the members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of board and auditors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Board set out on page 31, the Board are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Board’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Board; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Chairman’s Statement, the Strategic Report and the Report of the Board to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
>> give a true and fair view of the Board’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its profit for the year then ended
>> have been prepared properly in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
>> have been properly prepared in accordance with the Harbours Act 1964 as amended by the Transport Act 1981
Opinion on other matter
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Board for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Harbours Act 1964 as amended by the Transport Act 1981 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
>> adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for the audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
>> the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
>> certain disclosures of board members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
>> we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Jean Main Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Johnston Carmichael LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
29 Albyn Place
Aberdeen
AB10 1YL
31 March 2014
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013
		Notes

£’000

2012
£’000

£’000

£’000

TURNOVER		2		
27,682		27,376
Cost of sales		

9		

13,743		11,522

GROSS PROFIT				
13,939		15,854
Administrative expenses				
5,563		6,065

OPERATING PROFIT		5		
8,376
Interest receivable and similar income 		

6

Other finance income		

20

972

9,789
670

279		68

			

1,251		738

			

9,627		10,527

Interest payable and similar charges 		

1		61

7

PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION			

9,626		10,466

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 		

2,603		3,006

8

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 			

7,023		7,460

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
None of the Board’s activities were acquired or discontinued during the current year or previous year.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

					
2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR					
7,023

7,460

335

1,370

Actuarial gains on pension scheme 					
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension asset 					

(33)

(315)

Unrealised gain on investments					

669

1,109

Deferred tax associated with above gain					

56

(35)

Transfer on realisation of gain on investments					

–

285

TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES RELATING TO THE YEAR 				
8,050

9,874
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013
2013
		Notes

£’000

2012
£’000

£’000

£’000

FIXED ASSETS
10

111,503		102,606

Investments		11

33,126		31,499

Tangible assets		

			

144,629		134,105

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks		12

72

65

Debtors		13

4,923

5,726

Cash at bank			

1,141

3,580

			
6,136

9,371

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year 		

14

5,073

7,475

NET CURRENT ASSETS			

1,063		1,896

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 			

145,692		136,001

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after more than one year		

15		

(2,429)

–

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES		17

(466)		(1,054)

ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME 		18

(20)		(24)

PENSION ASSET		20

1,042		846

NET ASSETS			

143,819		135,769

RESERVES
Revaluation reserve		

19

3,874		3,149

Profit and loss account		

19

139,945		132,620

		23

143,819		135,769

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 31 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf by:
C P Lloyd Chairman
C Parker Chief Executive
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
2013
		Notes

£’000

2012
£’000

£’000

£’000

15,927		14,991

Net cash inflow from operating activities		1

(39)		194

Returns on investments and servicing of finance		2
Taxation			

(5,417)		(1,879)
(12,910)		(21,269)

Capital expenditure and financial investment		2
			

(2,439)		(7,963)

Management of liquid resources		2

2,388		7,967

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the period			

(51)		4

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds		3
(Decrease)/increase in cash in the period			

(51)

4

Cash inflow from decrease in liquid resources 			

(2,388)

(7,967)

Change in net funds resulting from cash flows			

(2,439)		(7,963)

Movement in net funds in the period			

(2,439)		(7,963)

Net funds at 1 January			

3,580		11,543

Net funds at 31 December			

1,141		3,580
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NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

					
2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

1 RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating profit					
8,376

9,789

Depreciation charges					
3,717

4,026

Profit on disposal of fixed assets					

–

(5)

Capital investment grants released					

(5)

(5)

(Increase)/decrease in stocks					
(7)

3

Decrease in debtors					
803

1,189

Increase/(decrease) in creditors					
2,632

(362)

411

356

Net cash inflow from operating activities 					
15,927

14,991

Difference between pension charge and cash contributions 					

2 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS FOR HEADINGS NETTED IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received					
24

194

Interest paid					
(63)

–

Net cash (outflow)/inflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance 					
(39)

194

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets					

(13,170)

(21,274)

Purchase of fixed asset investments					

–

(19,814)

Sale of tangible fixed assets					

260

5

Sale of fixed asset investments					

–

19,814

Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment 					
(12,910)

(21,269)

Management of liquid resources
Short term deposits					
2,388

7,967

Net cash inflow from management of liquid resources 					
2,388

7,967

3 ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS
				
At 1.1.13

Cash flow

At 31.12.13

				
£’000

£’000

£’000

Net cash:
Cash at bank				

3,580

(2,439)

1,141

Less: Deposits treated as liquid resources				

(3,504)

2,388

(1,116)

				 76

(51)

25

				 76

(51)

25

3,504

(2,388)

1,116

				 3,504

(2,388)

1,116

Total				 3,580

(2,439)

1,141

Liquid resources:
Deposits included in cash				
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain assets and are in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.
Turnover
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received in respect of services provided in the normal course of business stated net of Value Added Tax.
Rents receivable are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are initially stated at cost.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis on the asset costs using asset lives consistent with past practice, subject to a maximum quay life of 40 years. Plant is
depreciated on the basis of an economic life of 3 to 20 years depending on the nature of the asset. Dredgings are depreciated over a 40-year period. Buildings are depreciated
over the periods of between 20 and 50 years. Land is not depreciated.
Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of invoice cost on an average cost basis and estimated net realisable value. Provision is made for obsolescence.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date, where transactions, events or likely future
transactions that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Capital investment grants
Capital investment grants are credited to Profit and Loss Account over the expected useful lives of the relevant fixed assets.
Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at market value.
Leasing commitments
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Profit and Loss Account on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Finance lease receivables
Interest from finance leasing contracts, being the excess of amounts received over the cost in finance leasing contracts, is taken to profit reducing capital invested throughout the
period of the contract.
Amounts receivable under finance leases are included within other debtors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)
Retirement benefits
The Board operates two defined benefits pension schemes.
>> For the main scheme, in accordance with FRS17, the service cost of pension provision relating to the year, together with the cost of any benefits relating to past service,
is charged to operating profit. A charge equal to interest on the scheme liabilities and a credit equivalent to the long-term expected return on assets are included in the profit
and loss account under ‘Interest Receivable and Similar Income’. The difference between the market value of the assets of the scheme and the present value of the accrued
pension liabilities is shown as an asset or liability on the balance sheet net of deferred tax. Any difference between the expected return on the assets and that actually
achieved is recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses along with differences which arise from other experience or assumption changes.
>> The Pilots’ National Pension Fund is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme as the Board’s share of scheme assets and liabilities cannot be identified.
Refer to note 20 for further detail.
The Board also operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions payable to the Board’s pension scheme are charged to the profit and loss account in the period
to which they relate. Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

2 TURNOVER
The turnover and profit before taxation are attributable to the one principal activity of the Board.

					
2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

Revenue from Harbour Activities
Dues: On Ships					
10,643

10,410

		
On Goods					
7,031

7,011

					
17,674

17,421

Cranage and Weighbridge					
282

305

Storage					
438

360

Rent					
6,478

6,628

Revenue from Associated Activities
Pilotage					
2,675

2,570

Other Revenue					
135

92

					
27,682

27,376

3 STAFF COSTS
Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and Salaries					
4,866

4,562

Social Security Costs					
469

437

Pension Costs					
1,503

1,386

2,533

–

					
9,370

6,385

Pension Costs – additional contributions for funding deficits					

		
The average number of persons employed during the year was:					
No.

No.

Executive Board Member					3

3

Administrative and Managerial					
25

26

Operating and maintenance					
65

65

					
93

94
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2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

4 BOARD MEMBERS’ EMOLUMENTS
The aggregate of emoluments paid to Board members was (including Executive Board members)				

502

482

Emoluments of the highest-paid Board Member					

167

161

		
Three members are accruing retirement benefits under the Board’s defined benefit pension scheme (2012: 3). Amount accrued in respect of the highest-paid Board member
at 31 December 2013 was £111,247 (2012: £107,136).

5 OPERATING PROFIT
Stated after accounting for the following:
Direct Costs of Pilotage					

4,561

1,830

Hire of Plant and Machinery					

68

46

Hire of Other Assets – Operating Leases					

310

310

Low-water corrosion repairs					–

271

Major Maintenance
Torry Quay refurbishment – repair element					

748

733

Telford Dock Chain Area Resurfacing					

–

421

Auditors’ Remuneration					
17

21

Depreciation					
3,717

4,027

Capital Investment Grants					
(5)

(5)

–

(5)

Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets					

		

6 INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME
Interest Receivable on Short-Term Deposits (gross)					

10

Interest Received from Customer					

13

–

Loss on Disposal of Investment					

–

(307)

Dividends Receivable (net)					
949

855

122

					
972

670

Return on Pension Scheme Assets					

2,571

2,321

Interest on Pension Scheme Liabilities					

(2,292)

(2,253)

					
1,251

738

7 INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
1

61

					1

61

Interest paid to HMRC on Corporation Tax					
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

					
2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

8 TAXATION
Analysis of the tax charge
The tax charge on the profit on ordinary activities for the year was as follows:
Current tax:
UK corporation tax					
3,165

3,252

(4)

(26)

Total current tax					
3,161

3,226

Over provision in respect of prior years 					

Deferred tax:
Accelerated capital allowances					
(26)

(154)

Other timing differences					
(26)

(66)

(506)

–

Total deferred tax					
(558)

(220)

2,603

3,006

					
2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

Pension contributions unpaid at the year end					

Tax on profit on ordinary activities					

Factors affecting the tax charge
The tax assessed for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK.
The difference is explained below:
Profit on ordinary activities before tax					

9,626

10,466

Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 23.25% (2012: 24.50%)			

2,238

2,564

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes					

9

11

Effects of:
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation					

(99)

–

Depreciation in excess of capital allowances					

–

79

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods 					

(4)

(27)

Timing differences 					
619

71

Non-qualifying depreciation 					
620

637

Dividends already taxed 					

(221)

(209)

Income not taxable – fixed assets 					

(1)

(1)

Difference between chargeable and accounts gains 					

–

101

Current tax charge					
3,161

3,226
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2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

9 COST OF SALES
Operating and Maintenance					
10,144

7,327

Dredging					
447

163

Major Maintenance					
748

1,425

Depreciation (net of grants)					

2,404

2,612

Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets					

–

(5)

					
13,743

11,522

		

10 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
				
Dock
				
Structures,
				
Roads and		
Capital
Land and		
Plant and Permanent
Floating
Works in
Buildings
Dredging Machinery
Way
Craft
Progress
£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

58,905

10,111

10,636

75,869

3,819

–

134

3

Disposals

–

(344)

(2,185)

(166)

Transfers

–

–

472

15,508

62,724

9,767

9,057

91,214

17,426

1,979

8,007

Totals

£’000

£’000

2,406

9,116

167,043

–

8,918

12,874

–

–

(2,695)

–

(15,980)

–

2,406

2,054

177,222

36,235

790

–

64,437

COST
At 1 January 2013
Additions

At 31 December 2013

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2013

1,350

214

434

1,559

160

–

3,717

Eliminated on disposal

Charge for year

–

(345)

(1,924)

(166)

–

–

(2,435)

At 31 December 2013

18,776

1,848

6,517

37,628

950

–

65,719

At 31 December 2013

43,948

7,919

2,540

53,586

1,456

2,054

111,503

At 31 December 2012

41,479

8,132

2,629

39,634

1,616

9,116

102,606

NET BOOK VALUE

						
Included in cost of land and buildings is freehold land of £13,193,544 (2012: £9,375,851) which is not depreciated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

11 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
						
Quoted
						
Unit Trusts
						
£’000

LISTED INVESTMENTS
At Market Value
At 31 December 2012						
31,499
Dividends reinvested						
959
Additions						–
Disposals						–
Revaluation						
668
At 31 December 2013						
33,126
At Cost
At 31 December 2013 (includes dividends reinvested)						

29,131

At 31 December 2012 (includes dividends reinvested)						

28,172

UNLISTED INVESTMENTS
Aberdeen Harbour Board own 100% of the issued share capital of Aberdeen Harbour Limited, a company incorporated in Scotland. Aberdeen Harbour Limited is engaged in the
business of renting out property.
The results of Aberdeen Harbour Limited are not material and therefore group financial statements have not been prepared.
At 31 December 2013, Aberdeen Harbour Board owed Aberdeen Harbour Limited £3,763 (2012: owed to £55,260).
The Board charged Aberdeen Harbour Limited £332,614 (2012: £331,658) for rent and £2,000 in respect of management charges (2012: £2,000).

12 STOCKS
					
2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

Stocks					
72

65

13 DEBTORS
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors					
3,706

4,432

Other debtors					
383

709

VAT					
212

254

323

331

					
4,624

5,726

Prepayments and accrued income					

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Other debtors					
299

–

Aggregate amounts					
4,923

5,726
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2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

14 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Trade creditors					
496

945

Tax					
1,528

3,815

141

140

Other creditors					
637

575

Social security and other taxes 					

1,344

1,599

Accruals					
927

401

					
5,073

7,475

					
2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

Rent payments received on account 					

15 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
Other creditors					
2,429

–

16 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2013 the Board had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases of £310,000 in respect of land and buildings (2012: £310,000).
The expiry period is after five years.

17 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES
Deferred tax
Accelerated Capital Allowances					
851

876

Unrealised Gain on Investments					

121

178

Pension contributions unpaid at the year end					

(506)

–

					
466

1,054

						
Deferred tax
						
£’000
Balance at 1 January 2013						

1,054

Credit to profit and loss account during year 						

(26)

Credit on pension contributions unpaid at the year end 						

(506)

Credit in Statement of total recognised gains and losses						

(56)

Balance at 31 December 2013						
466
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
18 ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME
					
2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

Capital Investment Grants					
20

24

19 RESERVES
				
Profit
				
and loss Revaluation
				
account
reserve

Totals

				
£’000

£’000

£’000

At 1 January 2013				

3,149

135,769

7,023		

7,023

Profit for the year 				

132,620

Actuarial Gains relating to Pension Asset net of Tax				

302

–

302

Increase in Valuation of Investments				

–

669

669

Deferred Tax on increase in Valuation of Investments				

–

56

56

At 31 December 2013				
139,945

3,874

143,819

Profit and loss account excluding pension asset				

138,903

Pension reserve				
1,042
Profit and loss account				

139,945

20 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The Board operates a pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Board, being invested
with Fund Managers. Contributions to the Scheme are charged to the Profit and Loss Account so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with the Board.
The contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of valuations carried out every three years. The most recent triennial valuation was at 31 March 2011. The
2011 valuation showed that the market value of the Scheme’s assets was £48.8million and that the actuarial value of those assets represented 108% of the benefits that had
accrued to members, after allowing for the expected future increases in earnings. The contributions of the Board and employees in 2013 were 25.7% (2012 – 25.7%) and 5% of
earnings respectively, including contributions in respect of Death in Service. Amounts, based on the average working lives of employees, have been charged to the Profit and Loss
Account in respect of adjustments to the Scheme’s Funding Plan requirements. As at 31 October 2013 the Board closed the scheme to new members.
Two of the Board’s current employees are members of the Pilots’ National Pension Fund (PNPF). The PNPF is unusual in that the membership of the scheme includes both
employed and self-employed members. As at 31 December 2010 the valuation of that Fund’s assets totalled £292.54million, which represented 61% of the liabilities resulting in a
funding deficit of £186.65million. The Trustees of the PNPF have amended the Trust Deed and Rules so that all Competent Harbour Authorities (pilot licensing authorities) whether
direct employees or not would have joint and several responsibilities to meet any funding deficit.
The Board’s share of the funding, based on the Trustee’s most recent valuation advice, has been estimated at £2.53million which the Trustee has indicated will be payable by
monthly instalments over a 15-year period commencing on 1 January 2014. This obligation of £2.53million, based on currently available information, has been reflected in the
financial statements and £103,071 is included in other creditors falling due within one year and £2,428,848 is included in other creditors falling due after more than one year.
The next triennial valuation of the Fund will be at 31 December, and it is expected that this will alter the deficit payments in future years.
In accordance with FRS17, normal transactions with the PNPF are accounted for as if the Fund were a defined contribution scheme. During the year employer contributions paid to
the PNPF amounted to £18,230 (2012 – £16,428). These have been included in Cost of Services in the Profit and Loss Account.
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20 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (cont)
Defined benefit
pension plans
					
2013
2012
					
£’000
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
Present value of funded obligations 					
Fair value of plan assets					

£’000

(57,332)
58,634

(51,069)
52,168

					
1,302
Present value of unfunded obligations 					
0

1,099
0

Surplus					
1,302

1,099

Deferred tax liability					
(260)

(253)

Net asset					
1,042

846

The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:
Current service cost					
1,479
Interest cost					
2,292
Expected return					
(2,571)
Past service cost					0

1,369
2,253
(2,321)
0

					
1,200

1,301

						
Actual return on plan assets					
7,131

4,583

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation					
51,069
Current service cost					
1,479
Contributions by scheme participants 					
212
Interest cost					
2,292
Actuarial losses/(gains)					
4,225
Benefits paid					
(1,945)

47,954
1,369
197
2,253
892
(1,596)

					
57,332
51,069
		
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:
Opening fair value of scheme assets					
52,168
47,971
Contributions by employer					
1,068
1,013
Contributions by scheme participants 					
212
197
Expected return					
2,571
2,321
Actuarial gains/(losses)					
4,560
2,262
Benefits paid					
(1,945)
(1,596)
					
58,634

52,168

The amounts recognised in the statement of recognised gains and losses are as follows:
Actuarial gains 					
335

1,370

					
335

1,370

(2,719)

(3,054)

Cumulative amount of actuarial (losses)/gains					
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
20 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (cont)
Defined benefit
pension plans
					
2013
2012
The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:
Equities					
73%

72%

Bonds					
8%

9%

Gilts					
17%

17%

Other					
2%

2%

					
100%

100%

		
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

					
2013

2012

Discount rate					
4.50%

4.50%

Rate of salary increase					

4.15%

3.75%

Rate of increase of pensions in payment					

3.40%

3.00%

Inflation					
3.40%

3.00%

2.70%

2.30%

Rate of statutory revaluation of pensions in deferment 					
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Board considered the current level of expected returns on risk-free investments (primarily government
bonds), the historical level of the risk premium associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio is invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset
class. The expected return for each class was then weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for the
portfolio. This resulted in the selection of the 4.96% assumption for the year ended 31 December 2013 and a 5.79% assumption which will be used to calculate the P&L items
for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Weighted average assumptions used to determine net pension cost for the year ended:

					
2013

2012

Discount rate					
4.50%

4.70%

4.96%

4.86%

23.5

23.4

Expected long-term return on scheme assets					
Weighted average life expectancy for mortality tables used to determine benefit obligations at:
Retired male member age 65 (current life expectancy)					
Retired female member age 65 (current life expectancy)					

25.8

25.7

Non-retired male member age 45 (life expectancy at age 65)					

25.8

25.7

Non-retired female member age 45 (life expectancy at age 65)					

28.2

28.1
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20 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (cont)
Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

		
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
		
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
Defined benefit pension plans
Defined benefit obligation		

(57,332)

(51,069)

(47,954)

(44,108)

(41,444)

Fair value of scheme assets		

58,634

52,168

47,971

48,303

43,714

Surplus		
1,302
1,099
17
4,195
2,270
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities 		

–

–

917

(147)

(263)

Experience adjustments on scheme assets 		

4,560

2,262

(3,294)

2,219

3,765

21 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
					
2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

702

5,284

Capital and major maintenance expenditure which has been contracted for but has not been provided for				

22 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Transactions with the subsidiary undertaking, Aberdeen Harbour Limited are disclosed in note 11.
During the year, services of £25,704 were purchased from Scribe Management Services Limited, a company controlled by I Jessiman, who is a member of senior management.
The balance payable to Scribe Management Services Limited at 31 December 2013 was £25,704.

23 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES
					
2013

2012

					
£’000

£’000

Profit for the financial year					

7,023

7,460

Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year (net)					

1,027

2,414

Net addition to reserves					

8,050

9,874

Opening reserves					
135,769

125,895

Closing reserves					
143,819

135,769
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SHIPPING AND TRAFFIC STATISTICS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

		
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
Number of vessels
European Union		

1,670

1,741

1,775

1,629

1,715

Foreign (excl. EU)		

297

267

267

254

215

Offshore Oil		

5,687

5,861

5,421

5,122

5,331

White Fishing		

2

8

54

98

203

Fishing – Other		

165

256

258

358

459

Cruise		
13
9
9
6
10
		
7,834
8,142
7,784
7,467
7,933
Tonnage of Vessels (Thousand Gross Tonnes)
European Union		

8,103

8,091

8,177

7,516

7,421

Foreign (excl. EU)		

1,710

1,439

1,260

1,150

1,048

Offshore Oil		

18,226

18,591

16,404

15,496

15,437

White Fishing		

0

1

5

10

24

Fishing – Other		

24

22

15

22

28

Cruise		
61
44
50
34
53
		
28,124
28,188
25,911
24,228
24,011
Traffic Statistics (Thousand Tonnes)
Goods Inwards
Commercial Traffic		

1,705

1,707

1,660

1,646

1,609

Offshore Oil Traffic		

541

582

500

501

510

Fishing		
0
1
0
1

3

		
2,246
2,290
2,160
2,148
2,122
Goods Outwards
Commercial Traffic		

700

723

660

555

551

Offshore Oil Traffic		

1,936

2,126

1,944

1,953

1,868

		
2,636
2,849
2,604
2,508
2,419
Total Goods Inwards and Outwards		
4,882
5,139
4,764

4,656

4,541

Number of Passengers		
155,490
145,105
150,735
149,656

142,468
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Aberdeen Harbour is now fully established as the primary
marine support base to the energy sector for its activities in
the North Sea and West of Shetland. Passenger, freight and
general cargo operations make it the main commercial port
serving the North East of Scotland, whilst it also enjoys a
close relationship with its local environment, neighbouring
communities and its stakeholders.
To continue to fulfil these roles, however, and in line with the
Trust Port ethos of constant improvement, Aberdeen Harbour
must strive to evolve further.
It must ensure sustained commercial success by becoming
even more technically relevant, efficient and safe for its
customers. It must fulfil its profound responsibility to
continuously improve the way its activities interact with
nature, and recognise the needs of its neighbouring communities.
Aberdeen Harbour Board is fully committed to making such
changes happen, and in ensuring that customers, port users,
neighbours and the environment remain its primary focus.

ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD
16 Regent Quay
Aberdeen
AB11 5SS
t: +44 (0)1224 597000
f: +44 (0)1224 571507
e: info@aberdeen-harbour.co.uk
www.aberdeen-harbour.co.uk

Heaven 42 is produced from Totally Chlorine Free
(TCF) virgin fibre wood pulp from sustainable forest
sources and is FSC Certified in accordance with
the rules of The Forest Stewardship Council.

